IN THE SUPREME COURT STATE OF FLORIDA

case no.: 55

CLERK, SUPREME COURT
By

JAN 25 1995

THIRD DCA CASE NOS.

93-02606 93-02613

DINA R. CHUNG, M.D. and DINA R. CHUNG, M.D., P.A.,

L.T. CASE NO. 89-50670 CA (08) Judge Gisela Cardonne

Defendants/Petitioners.

VS.

MALKA FINK, etc.,

Plaintiffs/Respondents.

APPLICATION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, THIRD DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

BRIEF OF PETITIONERS ON JURISDICTION

ESTHER E. GALICIA, ESQUIRE

Florida Bar No.: 510459
GEORGE, HARTZ, LUNDEEN, FLAGG & FULMER
Attorneys for Defendants/Petitioners
DINA CHUNG, M.D. and DINA R.
CHUNG, M.D., P.A.
4800 LeJeune Road
Coral Gables, Florida 33146
Telephone No.: (305) 662-4800

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND OF THE FACTS

Petitioners, DINA CHUNG, M.D. and DINA R. CHUNG, M.D., P.A. (hereinafter "CHUNG"), seek review of a decision of the District Court of Appeal, Third District, filed on October 26, 1994, rehearing denied on January 4, 1995. [A. 1, A. 2]. The Petitioners were one of the several defendant healthcare providers in the trial court and one of the respondents before the district court. The Respondent, Lawrence Forman (hereinafter "Forman"), was the Plaintiffs' rehabilitation expert in the trial court and the petitioner before the district court.

At the trial level, Petitioners CHUNG sought discovery of all medical and legal evaluations Respondent Forman conducted from 1990 through 1993, and evidence of income received on matters in which he was retained by the an attorney during those years. The trial court entered an order compelling such discovery and Respondent Forman sought certiorari review. The Third District granted Respondent's petition and quashed the discovery order on the authority of Syken v. Elkins, 644 So. 2d 539 (Fla. 3d DCA 1994) (en banc). The Syken decision is currently pending before this Court. Syken v. Elkins, Florida Supreme Court Case No. 84, 649.

Petitioners' Notice to Invoke the Discretionary Jurisdiction of this Court was timely filed on January 13, 1995.

¹The letter "A." followed by a number refers to the particular item/document in the Appendix to the Brief of Petitioners on Jurisdiction.

QUESTION PRESENTED

WHETHER COURT HAS THIS JURISDICTION PURSUANT ARTICLE V, § 3(b)(3), FLA. CONST., WHERE THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL ISSUED A PER CURIAM OPINION CITING A CASE WHICH IS PENDING REVIEW IN THIS COURT AND THE DISTRICT **COURT'S** DECISION EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH THE DECISIONS OF OTHER DISTRICT COURTS OF APPEAL ON THE SAME QUESTION OF LAW.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

This Court should entertain its discretionary jurisdiction to review the decision of the Third District Court of Appeal for two reasons. First, the Third District's decision is based on the authority of Syken v. Elkins, 644 So. 2d 539 (Fla. 3d DCA 1994) (en banc), a decision that is currently pending review in this Court. Syken v. Elkins, Florida Supreme Court Case No.: 84, 649. Second, the Third District's decision expressly and directly conflicts with the decisions in Abdel-Fattah v. Taub, 617 So. 2d 429 (Fla. 4th DCA 1993); Young v. Santos, 611 So. 2d 586 (Fla. 4th DCA 1993); Bissell Brothers, Inc. v. Fares, 611 So. 2d 620 (Fla. 2d DCA 1993); Wood v. Tallahassee Memorial Regional Medical Center, Inc., 593 So. 2d 1140 (Fla. 1st DCA), review denied, 599 So. 2d 1281 (Fla. 1992); and McAdoo v. Ogden, 573 So. 2d 1084 (Fla. 4th DCA 1991).

ARGUMENT

THIS COURT HAS JURISDICTION PURSUANT TO ARTICLE V. § 3(b)(3). CONST., SINCE THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL ISSUED A PER CURIAM OPINION CITING A CASE WHICH IS PENDING REVIEW IN THIS COURT AND THE DISTRICT COURT'S DECISION EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS **OTHER** DECISIONS OF DISTRICT COURTS OF APPEAL ON THE SAME QUESTION OF LAW.

In order to allow Petitioners to delve into Respondent Forman's potential bias as Plaintiffs' rehabilitation expert, the trial court compelled Respondent to produce evidence of income received on matters in which he was retained by an attorney from 1990 through 1993, and all medical and legal evaluations Respondent conducted during those years. The Third District Court of Appeal quashed the trial court's discovery order on the authority of Syken v. Elkins, 644 So. 2d 539 (Fla. 3d DCA 1994) (en banc). The court in Syken held that, in order to demonstrate the probability of bias, medical experts should not be required to disclose the amounts of money earned from expert witness work. Syken is currently pending before this Court. Syken v. Elkins, Florida Supreme Court Case No.: 84, 649.

The fact that the Third District's decision in the instant case is based on the authority of Syken, supra, which this Court has under review, constitutes prima facie express conflict for purposes of jurisdiction. State v. Lofton, 534 So. 2d 1148, 1149 (Fla. 1988); Jollie v. State, 405 So. 2d 418, 420 (Fla. 1981). This Court accordingly

has jurisdiction pursuant to Article V, § 3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution. <u>Taylor</u> v. State, 601 So. 2d 540, 541 (Fla. 1992); <u>Lofton</u>, <u>supra</u>; <u>Jollie</u>, <u>supra</u>.

This Court also has jurisdiction over this matter because the Third District's decision, as discussed above, expressly and directly conflicts with the following decisions of the other district courts of appeal: Abdel-Fattah v. Taub, 617 So. 2d 429 (Fla. 4th DCA 1993) (trial court ordered to determine reasonable costs for non-party medical expert to compile information regarding defense-requested examinations done by him during past year); Young v. Santos, 611 So. 2d 586 (Fla. 4th DCA 1993) (doctor ordered by trial court to produce copies of bills, checks and payment records regarding medical exams done at request of insurance companies and law firms, as well as tax returns, for three-year period); Bissell Brothers, Inc. v. Fares, 611 So. 2d 620 (Fla. 2d DCA 1993) (IRS 1099 forms of independent medical examiners subject to discovery as reasonably calculated to lead to relevant evidence concerning bias); Crandall v. Michaud, 603 So. 2d 637 (Fla. 4th DCA) (independent medical examiner's 1099 forms or records of payment from insurers or defense law firms relevant to issue of bias); Wood v. Tallahassee Memorial Regional Medical Center, Inc., 593 So. 2d 1140 (Fla. 1st DCA) (trial court properly ordered independent medical examiners to produce for in-camera inspection tax returns for previous five years to extent they reflected income from involvement in medical malpractice cases), review denied, 594 So. 2d 1281 (Fla. 1992); McAdoo v. Ogden, 573 So. 2d 1084 (Fla. 4th DCA 1991) (bills to companies or persons for whom expert witness served as a defense expert examiner

relevant and discoverable in that they might serve to demonstrate the witness's potential bias).

CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing, this Court has discretionary jurisdiction to review the Third District's decision below. This Court should accordingly exercise that discretion to consider the merits of the Petitioners' arguments.