# IN THE SUPREME COURT STATE OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. <del>25,053</del> 85,053

DISTRICT COURT CASE NOS. 93-2606, 93-2613 ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT CASE NO. 89-50670 CA 08

DINA CHUNG and DINA CHUNG, P.A.

Defendant/Petitioners,

vs.

MALKA FINK, etc.

Respondents.

FILED

FEB 2 1995

APPLICATION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, THIRD DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT, LAWRENCE FORMAN, ON JURISDICTION

STUART H. SOBEL
Florida Bar No. 262382
SOBEL & SOBEL, P.A.
Counsel to Respondent,
Lawrence Forman
Penthouse
155 South Miami Avenue
Miami, Florida
33130-1609
(305) 358-1602
Fax: (305) 577-8615

#

## SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The decision under review, insofar as it quashes an Order requiring Respondent, Lawrence Forman, to create and produce documents not shown to be in existence, does not conflict with any decisions of other District Courts of Appeal on the same point of law. While the Third District Opinion is expressly based upon the "authority of Syken v. Elkins," 644 So.2d 539 (Fla. 3DCA 1994) (en banc), there are no cases conflicting with the actual underlying proposition, that Respondent cannot be ordered to produce that which does not exist or which has not been sought by way of the challenged subpoena.

The holding in <u>Syken</u>, is far broader that necessary to sustain the Third District's disapproval of the Trial Court Order. Thus, should this Honorable Court reverse or modify the Third District's decision in <u>Syken</u>, the decision in this matter would likely remain undisturbed and there is no reason to entertain review of this matter.

#### ARGUMENT

Respondent does not quarrel with Petitioner's analysis of Syken, or the claim that Syken may conflict with other cases on the same point of law. However, the discovery Order that was actually reviewed by the Third District required Petitioner to:

7...provide to the Defendants all information requested in the subpoena duces tecum. Court will not excuse Dr. (sic) Forman from the subpoena, notwithstanding Dr. Forman's assertion<sup>2</sup> that does not have he information requested, consisting of medical and legal evaluations performed by Dr. Forman at the request of attorneys for the years 1990 through 19932. Dr. Forman shall provide evidence of income received on each matter where he was retained by an attorney, for the years 1990 through 1993, by producing W-2 forms, or doing whatever is necessary to obtain that information.

The Order emanated from a hearing at a Motion for Order to Show Cause, where Respondent's compliance with a particular subpoena was questioned. The subpoena required the production of

- 1. Any and all appointment books for 1990, 1991, 1992 and 1993 to date, which reflect any medical/legal evaluations, testimony or any other work at the request of attorneys representing the patient/client.
- 2. Any and all copies of reports and bills (individual names of patients/clients may be whited out) for each of the aforesaid examinations and/or reviews.
- 3. Any and all evidence of payments, including but not limited to IRS form 1099, form attorneys for examinations and/or reviews

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Mr. Forman is <u>not</u> a doctor and has not held himself out as such.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Respondent's "assertion" was not challenged and remains uncontroverted.

performed in the calendar years of 1990, 1991, 1992 and 1993 to date.

The October 12, 1993 Order on Discovery Motions, quashed by the Third District, required Forman to produce and compile nonexistent documents and do the unspecified "whatever is necessary" beyond the scope of the subpoena to which Respondent was called to In so doing, the Court did not need to rely on any respond. doctrine which is in conflict. Rather, the opinion was soundly bottomed on the doctrine, in which Courts are quite uniform, that an expert witness cannot properly be ordered to produce records that are shown to be non-existent, Lejeune v. Aiken, 624 So.2d 788 (Fla. 3DCA 1993); Bissell Brothers, Inc. v. Fares, 611 So.2d 620 (Fla. 2DCA 1993); Balzebre v. Anderson, 294 So.2d 701 (Fla. 3DCA 1974). Likewise, it is indisputably error to order the production of unspecified documents not within the scope of a challenged subpoena. El Conquistador Condominium, Inc. v. Miller, 314 So.2d 641 (Fla. 3DCA 1975).

Petitioners can show no conflict on these points. Since this holding would be sufficient to sustain the Third District's Opinion, nothing is to be gained, or added to the jurisprudence of this State by subjecting this case to review.

#### CONCLUSION

The Petition for Discretionary Review should be denied.

Ample, non-conflicting support for the decision of the Third

District exists.